Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

In-person: The California Endowment, 1414 K. Street, Suite 100 Sacramento, CA
95814 Adelante Room

Virtual: via Webex

Meeting Presentations: https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/previous-liob-meetings/

Board Members Present (In Person): Benito Delgado-Olson, Robert Castaneda, Commissioner Baker,
Paul Irwin

Commissioner Present (In Person): Commissioner Douglas

Board Members Present (Virtually): Jason Wimbley, Lourdes Medina, Lisa Castilone
Board Members Absent: John Tang, Pat Watts, Marlene Murphy-Roach

Quorum reached: 9:30 AM

CPUC Staff in-Person: Jen Gordon, Ankit Jain, Elisia Hoffman, Coby Rudolph

Virtual:

Rate Discounts Team - Cheryl Wynn, Mia Hart, Leo Dosanjh
ESA Team - Kapil Kulkarni, Gillian Weaver, Ana Zapata
Commissioner Baker Office — Kyle Navis

Commissioner Douglas Office — Jason Symonds

1. Welcome and Introductions
Vice Chair Jason Wimbley opened the meeting of the 2" Quarterly Low-Income Oversight
Board (LIOB) at approximately 9:40 AM, on behalf of Board Chair Delgado-Olson

2. Approval of the March 25, 2025, LIOB Meeting Minutes - Action Item
Board Member Castaneda moved to approve the minutes from the March 2025 meeting. This motion
was seconded by Board Member Castilone, who joined virtually. The LIOB Members in attendance
approved the minutes unanimously.

3. Public Comment
Telephone/ Call-In

e None
In-Person
e None


https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/previous-liob-meetings/

Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

4. Joint Investor-Owned Utilities Status Reports
The I0Us presented updates on their low-income programs, including CARE, FERA, and ESA,
highlighting mid-year progress, budget status, administrative challenges, and projections for year-end
goals. They also addressed arrearage trends, disconnection data, and a proposal from SDG&E to phase
out a high-cost energy program. You can review their presentations on the LIOB website here: Item 4.
Joint IOU Presentations, Item 4: Joint IOU Presentation -- Application Update and Item 4: EE
Application (SDG&E).

Joint IOU Presentations

Jenny Wu and Cathleen Monahan with PG&E shared that ESA pilot cost-effectiveness varies and
committed to providing detailed cost-per-home data. They support simplified program design and will
continue Whole Home efforts during the bridge period. The CARE discount is currently 38.5% and will
increase to 40% with a fixed charge. PG&E reported increased Tribal Grant Program participation,
attributed to outreach and reduced application barriers.

Rosett Solidum with SCE is advancing ESA Whole Home and Building Electrification pilots, with high
treatment costs and limited interest in Whole Home leading to a planned closure during the bridge
period. CARE discounts are rising to 40% by end of 2025. SCE emphasized tribal engagement, AMP
success (5182M forgiven), and noted the end of its mini-grant program. Participation in AMP is
increasing, and follow-up data on CARE eligibility among AMP users will be provided.

Rollan Mollen with SDG&E reported tripled ESA energy savings and praised the Harris Group’s FERA
outreach. The CARE discount is 38%, and FERA enrollment is growing. ESA appliance upgrades,
especially refrigeration, are yielding major savings. A prior cyberattack and customer distrust have
posed challenges. Renters face barriers due to landlord approval. SDG&E emphasized the need to
maintain pilot progress.

Brenda Rodriguez with SoCalGas gave updates on ESA, AMP outreach, and tribal engagement. The
Multi-Family Whole Building program is not yet active, and the Whole-Home effort is a joint program
with SCE.

Board members stressed affordability and workforce development, and SoCalGas acknowledged these
priorities.

Board Member Castaneda asked about the savings, costs, and cost-effectiveness of ESA pilots. PG&E
said results varied by program and agreed to share cost-per-home data at a future ESA Working Group
meeting. He also asked about changes in overhead costs; PG&E attributed differences to service costs,
one-time expenses, and contractor variations, and offered to provide follow-up data.

Board Member Castilone inquired about increased enrollment in PG&E’s Tribal Grant Program and
potential funding caps. PG&E attributed the increase to outreach efforts, confirmed there is no cap,
and described efforts to simplify participation. Castilone also expressed concern about the end of
SCE’s mini-grant program; SCE confirmed its conclusion but noted continued outreach through other
programs. Castilone requested data on AMP customers eligible for CARE, and SCE agreed to follow up.


https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2025/06/Item-4-Joint-IOU_Presentation.pdf
https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2025/06/Item-4-Joint-IOU_Presentation.pdf
https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2025/06/Item-4-Joint-IOU-Presentation-Application-Update.pdf
https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2025/06/Item-4-EE-Application-SDGE.pdf
https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2025/06/Item-4-EE-Application-SDGE.pdf

Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

Board Member Irwin commended SCE on its tribal engagement efforts and emphasized the value of
one-on-one coordination with tribal communities.

Vice Chair Wimbley asked PG&E about ESA overhead cost changes; PG&E cited fixed service costs and
contractor differences. He also asked SCE about AMP participation, repayment, and awareness; SCE
reported increases in both participation and completion. Vice Chair Wimbley further asked SDG&E
about renter participation challenges; SDG&E pointed to landlord approval as a key barrier.

Chair Delgado-Olson joined the meeting around 10:30 a.m., apologized for arriving late, and thanked
Vice Chair Wimbley and the public for their engagement.

Commissioner Baker asked PG&E to clarify the CARE discount, which they confirmed was 38.5%,
increasing to 40% under AB 205. Commissioner Baker also requested cost-per-home data for ESA
pilots. SCE reported $28,000 per home for the Whole Home pilot and $14,000 for the Building
Electrification pilot. SDG&E noted refrigeration as the main source of energy savings, with pool pumps
also contributing.

10U Presentation -- Application Update

The Joint IOUs (PG&E, SCE, SDG&E, and SoCalGas) provided an update on their upcoming applications,
stakeholder engagement plans, and timelines—bridge funding applications in late June and full
CARE/FERA/ESA applications by the end of November. For ESA, they prioritized electrification, limiting
bill impacts, aligning budgets and goals across ESA Main and Multi-Family, proposing a 6-year cycle
with mid-cycle updates, and using pilots to inform design. For CARE, they focused on affordability,
enrollment, retention, customer experience, and data sharing. For FERA, they aimed to set reasonable
enrollment goals and apply CARE strategies for income verification and data use.

Board Member Castaneda asked about the duration of the upcoming ESA program cycle, specifically
the pros and cons of a 4-year versus a 6-year cycle, and inquired about the rationale for a longer cycle
and the structure of a mid-cycle review. He noted that in previous years, the advice letter process had
been used in place of the ESA Working Group to reduce costs and provide more accessible input
opportunities for stakeholders.

Commissioner Baker expressed a preference for a 4-year cycle to allow more frequent adjustments
but was open to using the advice letter process. Jointly, the IOUs supported the advice letter process
and noted that a 6-year cycle could provide stronger market signals and cost-effectiveness.

Commissioner Douglas supported expanding ESA pilots and emphasized a focus on electrification.
SDG&E shared that, while speaking only on behalf of SDG&E, they were exploring opportunities to
combine energy efficiency measures with electrification. For multi-family buildings, they were

particularly interested in a cost-sharing mechanism involving a blend of IOU-funded incentives.

Chair Delgado-Olson asked about income verification for FERA. SDG&E mentioned coordination with

3



Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

LIHEAP, while PG&E described using direct enrollment through programs like Relief for Energy
Assistance through Community Help (REACH), Disadvantage Communities -Single-Family Solar Homes
(DAC-SASH), and LIHEAP, and working with the California Department of Technology on secure
identity validation.

Chair Delgado-Olson also asked if this applied to CARE and ESA. PG&E confirmed it was in use for
CARE, under exploration for FERA, and noted that while ESA participants are automatically enrolled in
CARE, CARE participants are not automatically enrolled in ESA.

Board Member Castaneda acknowledged the complexity of the ESA program and noted the challenges
of implementation.

Chair Delgado-Olson stated that while it is important to understand the benefits of both the 4-year
and 6-year cycle structures, a hybrid option of a 4-year cycle with a possible extension might offer the
necessary flexibility. He emphasized the need to prioritize health, safety, and comfort benefits for low-
income households, particularly as climate impacts intensify. PG&E added that it was important to
receive ESA-related evaluations by 2028 to inform the next full-cycle application.

Energy Efficiency Application (SDG&E)

Alton Kwok (SDG&E) presented energy efficiency programs, including budget spending and the
implementation of three statewide and 17 local/regional programs. SDG&E highlighted statewide
affordability efforts, referencing Executive Order N-5-24 and the CPUC’s response to assess cost-
effectiveness. The presentation also addressed findings from the Public Advocate’s and State Auditor’s
reports. SDG&E explained its proposal to withdraw from regional program administration, citing cost
savings and a history of low cost-effectiveness. SDG&E clarified that it would continue funding
statewide energy efficiency programs and is not proposing funding reductions to low-income or
discount programs. The presentation concluded with an overview of stakeholder engagement, noting
the proposal would take effect in 2026 if approved by the CPUC.

Chair Delgado-Olson clarified why he asked SDG&E to present to provide clarity, as their press release
mentioned CARE and FERA but not ESA, and he had received several questions about the proposal in
the press release.

Board Member Castaneda asked what’s SDG&E’s next steps, the minor cost savings of this proposal to
ratepayers, and how to invest the $300 million into something else. SDG&E clarified this is an
application and request to the CPUC, no legislative changes are occurring.

Ayesha Cervantes-Cissna, Senior Policy Manger for San Diego Community Power, the lead
administrator of San Diego’s regional energy efficiency program provided a public comment. San
Diego Community Power agreed with the Chair Delgado Olson’s comments regarding public purchase
programs do not lead to higher rates for ratepayers, respectfully disagreed with how SDG&E’s frames
the $300 million savings as it emits other cost effectiveness metrics such as long term avoided costs.
San Diego Community Power also states that SDG&E’s proposal should be addressed in the CPUC'’s
market rate efficiency proceeding, including the loading order statutory requirements, and that the

4



Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

CPUC create a process for considering these types of proposals in a more formal rulemaking setting.
LIOB Led Discussion on ESA Spending

Board Member Castaneda briefly presented the ESA budget and homes treated report for calendar
years 2023-2025, discussed ways to simplify the ESA program, and requested that the IOUs respond
to the analysis. For additional details, please refer to here LIOB IOU Summary Report 2023-2025.

Chair Delgado-Olson emphasized the importance of collaboration between the IOUs and CPUC,
highlighting opportunities to apply lessons learned in both the bridge application and the full program
cycle proceeding.

Chair Delgado-Olson formally closed Item 4, adjourned for lunch at 12:10 and confirmed the board
would reconvene at 1:10.

5. CPUC Standing Reports

«Office of Governmental Affairs - Director, Erin Rodriguez
Erin Rodriguez provided an update on the legislative calendar and explained that bills are entering the
second house, and policy committees will hear those bills up until mid-July. Erin also updated the LIOB
on the passage of the budget by June 15™. Erin discussed energy related bills on affordability may be
brought up through the trailer bill process.

The following legislation was discussed:

e AB 428 (Rubio) - would authorize the I0Us to join joint powers agreements (JPAs) with
mutual water companies and public agencies for the purpose of insurance risk pooling.
Such JPAs must be fully reimbursed and cannot impose joint and several liability or
financial obligations on Members. IOUs would be required to submit annual informational
filings to the CPUC detailing insurance costs and customer benefits.

e AB 745 (Irwin) - would direct that the California Climate Credit be distributed in July,
August and September, with flexibility allowed during extreme or unforeseen events,
which may intersect with cap-and-invest funding and the role of the climate credit in
supporting ratepayer relief.

e AB 942 (Calderon) - could deliver broad ratepayer savings and equity benefits through cap-
and-trade. However, as drafted, it may exclude low-income net-energy metering (NEM)
customers from receiving the climate credit.

e SB 254 (Becker, Chair of the Senate Energy, Utilities and Communications Committee) -
proposes the POWER program to reduce wildfire and infrastructure costs to ratepayers.
This represents the most expansive affordability reform package of the 2025 session.

e SB 453 (Stern) - proposes to reallocate unspent funds from the Microgrid Incentive
Program (MIP) to vulnerable communities, including those with access and functional
needs (AFN) populations. This bill would modify existing MIP eligibility and funding use
requirements, which are currently being implemented following the recent CPUC decision.

e SB 647 (Hurtado) - would add an appointed board Member to the LIOB, from the CA
Energy Commission, to the LIOB and would direct the Board to study options for
expanding energy efficiency incentives to newly eligible households.

Chair Delgado-Olson asked if the CPUC has any formal position on any of the bills discussed and how
5


https://liob.cpuc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/14/2025/06/LIOB-IOU-Summary-Report-2023-2025.pdf

Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

the CPUC determines its formal position, through a committee. Erin confirmed that the CPUC does not
have any formal positions and clarified the process varies from each commissioner, and in August the
bills are reviewed with President Reynolds and the relevant Commissioners to make a
recommendation.

Chair Delgado-Olson asked about Senator Stern’s Bill, SB 453, and when unspent funds would be
reallocated to vulnerable communities. Erin clarified that those unspent funds after 2025 would be
allocated in 2026.

Commissioner Baker noted Stanford University study by Michael Wara has indicated reallocating the
climate credit to CARE customers, especially in hotter climates. Erin expressed concerns about the bill
being too prescriptive and noted that cap-and-trade reauthorization negotiations (now referred to as
cap-and-invest) could also affect the bill’s trajectory.

e Energy Division - Kapil Kulkarni, Senior Regulatory Analyst
Kapil Kulkarni with the Energy Division provided updates on ESA, CARE, and FERA programs, including
guidance to 10Us for the 2028 program cycle and timelines for bridge funding. Staff discussed the new
energy efficiency rulemaking (R.25-04-010), the 2025 Income Qualified Potential and Goals Study, the
Non-Energy Impacts (NEI) Study, and the 2025 Low Income Needs Assessment (LINA) Study. Draft
LINA results are expected in Q3 2025, with a final report in Q4 2025.

Board Member Castaneda noted that weatherization measures, such as sealing, may show lower
energy savings compared to appliances in the NEI study and future evaluations. He also highlighted
that the NEI study defines ESA as an affordability program. The Energy Division clarified that
additional studies may be requested in upcoming proceedings.

e Water Division - Jeremy Ho, Utilities Engineer
Jeremy Ho, on behalf of Kevin Truong, provided the Water Division update at the CPUC. The Customer
Assistance Program (CAP), including total CAP enroliment peaked in 2022 and has plateaued, mainly
due to recertifications happening after they were halted during COVID. Water bill arrearages have
decreased as well as the average debt, contributing factors include utilities receiving funding from
payment programs, from CSD and State Water Resources control board. During COVID utilities were
not allowed to shut off customers’ water, but those have now been reinstated.

6. CPUC Decision Making Process - Judge Garett Toy
Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) Toy provided an overview of the CPUC’s formal and informal decision-
making processes, including the organizational structure, types of proceedings (Applications,
Complaints, Investigations, and Rulemakings), and procedural steps. She outlined ways stakeholders
can participate—such as public comments, oral arguments, workshops, and ex-parte
communications—and offered guidance on how and when the LIOB could engage, particularly in the
CARE/FERA/ESA bridge funding and full program cycle proceedings. ALl Toy also explained the scoping
memo process and recommended submitting comments by September. The informal process,
including the Advice Letter process, was also reviewed.



Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

Chair Delgado-Olson emphasized the LIOB's interest in participating in the CARE/ESA/FERA proceeding
and expressed intent to define engagement through the TAC. He asked when the LIOB could provide
input, and ALJ Toy advised that submitting input as early as possible—ideally before the prehearing
conference in August—would be most effective, though the timing is at the LIOB’s discretion.

7. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
Chair Delgado-Olson reaffirmed the committee’s flexibility to discuss and make recommendations to
the full Board and Commission on matters related to the bridge funding and full program applications.
He noted that follow-up meetings will be scheduled between quarterly meetings, aligned with the
draft schedule outlined by AU Toy.

Chair Delgado-Olson invited non-TAC Board Members to confirm their interest in participating. Board
Members Medina and Irwin confirmed their interest in joining the TAC. A motion to approve the new
TAC members was made by Chair Delgado-Olson, seconded by Board Member Castaneda, and
approved unanimously by all present Board Members.

Vice Chair Wimbley asked a clarifying question and asked to understand what changes the LIOB can
recommend and what guidance LIOB can provide. Chair Delgado-Olson clarified that LIOB could weigh
in on the application process.

8. Subcommittee Reports - Action Item
Chair Delgado-Olson confirmed if each subcommittee met.

Board Member Castaneda stated LIEAP Subcommittee did not meet but intend to soon.
LINA Subcommittee did not meet this quarter.

Chair Delgado-Olson confirmed that the Legislative Subcommittee met (on 4/16/2025) and, on behalf
of Subcommittee Chair Patricia Watts, reported that the committee recommended supporting AB 428
(Rubio). He also suggested bringing the bill back to the Legislative Subcommittee for further
discussion.

Chair Delgado-Olson raised SB 647 (Hurtado), noting stakeholder inquiries regarding LIOB membership
changes and a proposed study on low- and moderate-income populations. He recommended referring
the bill to the Legislative Subcommittee for further discussion. Board Member Castaneda agreed and
expressed concerns about the bill and timing for engagement. Chair Delgado-Olson suggested
meeting with the author’s office during the summer recess and voiced concerns about the study’s
value and potential CPUC staff capacity constraints.

Chair Delgado-Olson, on behalf of Water and Climate Change (WCC) Subcommittee, Chair John Tang,
confirmed that the WCC Subcommittee did not meet this quarter.

Chair Delgado-Olson invited the board to disclose if they wanted to no longer serve on any
committees and no one contested.



Low Income Oversight Board — 2™ Quarterly Meeting
Wednesday June 11, 2025 - 9:30 AM — 4:00 PM

9. Wrap up and Closing Remarks
Chair Delgado-Olson noted that our next meeting is scheduled for City of Inglewood City Hall on
September 11™. Chair Delgado-Olson thanked Energy Division staff, the presenters, the IOUs and IT
for arranging the meeting.



	1. Welcome and Introductions
	2. Approval of the March 25, 2025, LIOB Meeting Minutes – Action Item
	3. Public Comment
	Telephone/ Call-In
	In-Person

	4. Joint Investor-Owned Utilities Status Reports
	5. CPUC Standing Reports
	•Office of Governmental Affairs – Director, Erin Rodriguez
	Erin Rodriguez provided an update on the legislative calendar and explained that bills are entering the second house, and policy committees will hear those bills up until mid-July. Erin also updated the LIOB on the passage of the budget by June 15th. ...
	• Energy Division – Kapil Kulkarni, Senior Regulatory Analyst
	 Water Division - Jeremy Ho, Utilities Engineer

	6. CPUC Decision Making Process – Judge Garett Toy
	7. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
	8. Subcommittee Reports – Action Item
	9. Wrap up and Closing Remarks

